IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE STATE OREGON

FOR YAMHILL COUNTY


STATE OF OREGON

   )
    AFFIDAVIT IN SUPPORT OF AN






   )   SS   APPLICATION FOR AN ORDER 

COUNTY OF YAMHILL
   )
    AUTHORIZING INSTALLATION

)
    OF AN ELECTRONIC TRACKING 

)
    DEVICE
I, Jed M. Stone, being first duly sworn on oath, depose and say:

TRAINING AND EXPERIENCE 
I am a police officer with the Oregon State Police.  That I have been a police officer in excess of nineteen (19) years.  During these nineteen years of experience, I have been assigned to both Patrol and Criminal Divisions.  Between October 1999 and March 2003, I was a member of the Oregon State Police Criminal Division’s Drug Enforcement Section, assigned first to the South Coast Interagency Narcotics Team, then to the Yamhill County Interagency Narcotics Team. The areas in which I worked narcotics included Curry, Coos, Yamhill, Washington, Clackamas, Multnomah, Tillamook, Clatsop, and Marion Counties in Oregon. Between March 2004 and January 2005, I was assigned to the Oregon State Police Criminal Division’s Tobacco Compliance Task Force to investigate tobacco related crimes within the State of Oregon. Between January 2005 and September 2005 I was assigned to the Oregon State Police Criminal Division’s Violent Offender Section, Salem, Oregon, where I investigated crimes against persons, including homicides, assaults, sex crimes, and public corruption. Between October 2005 and June 2008, I was assigned the Oregon State Police Criminal Division’s Drug Enforcement Section Meth Initiative Team, (MIT). My MIT position was assigned to the Regional Organized Crime and Narcotics Agency, (ROCN). The areas in which I worked narcotics includes the greater Portland and surrounding areas. I am currently assigned to the Oregon State Police Criminal Division’s Drug Enforcement Section and the Yamhill County Interagency Narcotics Team, (YCINT). The primary area in which I currently work narcotics includes Yamhill, Washington, Tillamook, Marion and Clackamas Counties. 

During my tenure as a career police officer, I have had training and on-the-job experience in the investigation of numerous types of crimes which includes, but is not limited to, the investigation of crimes against persons: homicides, assaults, child abuse, weapons offenses, burglaries, and the various types of thefts which include thefts by deception and thefts of services.

During my tenure as a police officer, I have had training and on-the-job experience in the investigation of narcotics and narcotics-related crimes, including marijuana, methamphetamine/amphetamine, heroin, cocaine, lysergic acid diethylamide (LSD), gamma hydroxy butyrate (GHB), methylenedioxymethamphetamine (MDMA or ecstasy), as well as other various designer drugs.  That during this training I was trained to identify many controlled substances including the above-named and that this training included the methods of use, sales, delivery, possession and manufacture of said controlled substances.  

During my tenure as a police officer, I have received numerous assignments to investigate general law and narcotics-related crimes. I have had training from the Oregon State Police, the police certification process in Oregon, which is from the Department of Public Safety Standards and Training Academy (DPSST).  I have received other training from the Western States Information Network (WSIN), the Drug Enforcement Administration (DEA), including the DEA’s basic two week academy, the Oregon Narcotics Enforcement Association (ONEA), the Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco and Firearms (ATF), the United States Marshals Service, the California Bureau of Narcotics Enforcement (BNE), and the Federal Bureau of Investigations (FBI), the U.S Department of Justice, the Oregon Department of Justice, as well as training from a variety of other law enforcement agencies.  This includes, but is not limited to, the identification of controlled substances, the interdiction of drug traffickers and smugglers, narcotics sales and distribution, the detection and investigation of clandestine labs, the conspiracies involving the above and how to investigate these types of crimes. That I have, in fact, used these techniques to investigate narcotic-related crimes. I have attended Clandestine Lab Site-Safety School, and I am a trained Clandestine Lab Site-Safety officer. This training includes investigation into the violation of both Oregon State statutes and violations of United States Statutes and violations of the United States Code (U.S.C.) to include 21 U.S.C., 841 and 881 et seq. On June 13, 2001 and September 06, 2001, I was qualified as an expert witness in the investigation of controlled 
substance offenses in the Circuit Court for the County of Curry and the State of Oregon.

I have been involved in the arrest of more than three hundred (300) persons charged with violations of the controlled substance laws concerning possession, distribution and/or manufacture of controlled substances including possession, distribution and/or manufacturing marijuana. I have participated in or executed at least one hundred (100) search and seizure warrants with respect to various criminal activities, including drug-related crimes.  I have supplied information to support affidavits and/or sworn to affidavits for search and seizure warrants in these investigations. I have been involved with no less than ten investigations that have resulted in federal prosecution for United States Code Title 21 violations.
I make this application pursuant to ORS 133.545, ORS 133.617, and ORS 133.619, which together define and authorize the execution of a warrant authorizing a mobile tracking device, specifically an electronic device which permits the tracking or the movement of a person or object, by presentation of an affidavit of probable cause in the Circuit Court of the State of Oregon.

SOURCE OF INFORMATION


This affidavit is based on information obtained by the affiant and members of the Yamhill County Interagency Narcotics Team (YCINT) as well as from a Confidential Source (CS) whose information was verified through independent follow up investigation. The information contained in this affidavit is further based upon information that I have learned from personal observation and experience, information that other law enforcement officers supplied me, and the use of corroborated sources of information.

PURPOSE OF AFFIDAVIT
This affidavit is in support of an Application for an Order authorizing law enforcement officers working on this investigation, technical agents, or employees working with them, to (a) install, remove, monitor, repair, or adjust a global positioning satellite (GPS) electronic tracking device on or within the subject vehicles, a 2004 GMC Envoy, white in color, bearing Oregon license plate number: XXX-XXX and Vehicle Identification Number 1GKDT13S7XXXXXXXXXX, and a 2000 Toyota Tacoma pickup truck, black in color, bearing Oregon license plate number: XXX-XXX and Vehicle Identification number 5TEWN72NXXXXXXXXX, at any time of the day or night; (b) if necessary to protect the safety of person(s) installing, removing, monitoring, repairing, or adjusting the electronic tracking device, or to protect the integrity of the investigation, to surreptitiously enter the subject vehicle at any time of the day or night, and move the subject vehicle from one location to another for the purpose of installing, removing, monitoring, repairing, or adjusting the device; and/or to tow the vehicle; (c) surreptitiously re-enter the subject vehicle at any time of the day or night, for the purpose of installing, removing, monitoring, repairing, or adjusting the device; and (d) continuously monitor any and all signals emitted from the electronic tracking device, including when the vehicle enters any structure or private property in which there may be a reasonable expectation of privacy for a period of up to thirty (30) days.
As discussed below, I believe that the installation of a real time, global positioning satellite tracking device may lead to the discovery of illicit marijuana growing operations as well as clandestine meetings between the target of this investigation and co conspirators involved in mid to upper level marijuana distribution in Washington and Yamhill Counties as well as the greater Portland area. These meetings and expected transactions are in violation of State of Oregon’s controlled substance laws, 475.856 and 475.860, as well as Title 21, United States Code, section 841 (a) (1).
INVESTIGATION

In January 2009, I received information from a CS about a subject named SUSPECT, DOB: 04-17-72, who was reported to be selling large quantities of marijuana in Washington and Yamhill counties. The CS told me SUSPECT possesses an Oregon Medical Marijuana Card, but SUSPECT sells marijuana to anyone. A subsequent check through the Oregon Medical Marijuana Program (OMMP) confirmed SUSPECT OMMP card status. During this same time I learned SUSPECT was living with a woman later identified as SUSPECT, DOB: 10-31-79, also alleged to possess a medical marijuana card. Additional checks through OMMP Confirmed SUSPECT’s card status.  

I then caused checks to be made through the Law Enforcement Data Systems LEDS/NCIC and learned the following:

SUSPECT, DOB: 04-17-72, is a convicted felon and a multi state offender. He has an extensive criminal history for assaults and probation violations, including convictions for assaulting a public safety officer. He has no known arrests for controlled substance offenses.

SUSPECT, DOB: 10-31-79, has no known criminal history. 

Through the CS I learned SUSPECT and SUSPECT were living at XXXX, Sherwood, Oregon, and that SUSPECT drove a primer color Toyota pickup truck with Oregon license plate number XXX-XXX.  Subsequent checks through power and Oregon Department of Motor Vehicle records revealed SUSPECT and SUSPECT were living at the above address and that the Toyota pickup truck is registered to SUSPECT and lists 5TEWN72NXXXXXXXXX as the vehicle identification number. Through surveillance at the above location I observed SUSPECT and his vehicle parked at that location.


In February 2009 an undercover police officer (UC) was introduced to SUSPECT through a third party for the purpose of buying marijuana from SUSPECT. SUSPECT had agreed to sell the UC officer one ounce of marijuana. The UC officer met with SUSPECT at a prearranged location in Newberg, Oregon and was introduced 
to him. SUSPECT had in his possession a soft cooler that contained four separately packaged ounces of marijuana, each bag individually marked with the name of a different strain of cannabis. The UC officer picked out an ounce of marijuana and paid SUSPECT three hundred ($300.00) police buy money for the ounce of marijuana. SUSPECT gave the UC officer his cell phone number and told the UC officer he/she could call him when he/she wanted more.


Between February 2009 and May 2009 the UC officer purchased ounce quantities of marijuana from SUSPECT on no less than four occasions. On each of these occasions SUSPECT and the UC officer discussed buying marijuana on future dates and SUSPECT talked about growing marijuana. On one of these occasions SUSPECT was followed back to XXXX, Sherwood, Oregon. On no less then three occasions SUSPECT was driving the above listed black Toyota pickup truck with Oregon license plate number XXX-XX when he delivered the marijuana to the UC officer. 

During one conversation in February 2009, SUSPECT told the UC officer he gets his marijuana from a group of six co op growers in the Portland area and what he has on hand is what ever is being harvested at the time. Through the conversation with the UC officer SUSPECT made it clear he is continually obtaining more marijuana and different strains of marijuana on an ongoing basis, and named off several strains, i.e. Afghan Gooey, Diesel, Recon, Train Wreck, and Afghani to name a few.  

Also in February 2009 SUSPECT told the UC Officer he would be moving to a new location close to where he was currently living and said as soon as he gets in his little trailer he’ll have his grow set up because he’s legal to grow. SUSPECT told the UC officer there wasn’t anything law enforcement could do about his selling marijuana because he has his medical marijuana card. 
In March 2009, the UC Officer met with SUSPECT and purchased marijuana from SUSPECT. During the conversation with SUSPECT, SUSPECT told the UC officer, he and SUSPECT were living in a bigger place now and his marijuana grow was up and running. SUSPECT said he would be harvesting in about three months, and he has four kinds (strains) of marijuana going. SUSPECT said he has four cards and he could have up to four pounds of marijuana in their home at a time.

Through the CS I learned SUSPECT had moved to a double wide trailer next door to where he and SUSPECT had been living. Through follow up investigation I learned that SUSPECT and SUSPECT had moved to XXX, Sherwood, Oregon, approximately 100 yards from where they had been living. 
Through surveillance, YCINT officers observed SUSPECT and his Toyota pickup parked at the residence on numerous occasions. 

Following an undercover buy/slide operation (one in which controlled substances are purchased but the suspect is not arrested) in March 2009, YCINT members followed SUSPECT away from the buy location and back to XXXX, Sherwood, Oregon, and go inside the trailer.
On at least one occasion SUSPECT arrived at a drug buy with the UC officer and had SUSPECT with him. On this occasion SUSPECT handed the UC officer the marijuana. 

In May 2009 the UC officer had a conversation with SUSPECT wherein SUSPECT told the UC officer he was currently at his grow site in Hillsboro but would be back in Yamhill County later in the day and would have marijuana for the UC officer. This conversation further leads investigators to believe SUSPECT is in control of more than one grow site. 

During one conversation with SUSPECT in May 2009, SUSPECT told the UC officer he was out of marijuana and that he had to run around that day and collect money from people (for marijuana) and that he would be re-upping (obtaining more marijuana) in short order.
During the first half of May 2009, I learned SUSPECT had purchased a new vehicle, a 2004 GMC Envoy. During a buy/slide operation around the same time period, Combs arrived at the meet location driving a white GMC Envoy with Oregon license plate number XXX-XXX. SUSPECT told the UC officer the vehicle was his. A subsequent check through Oregon DMV lists the vehicle identification number as 1GKDT13SXXXXXXXX.

Based on the facts gathered in this investigation, as discussed above, I believe that SUSPECT is utilizing the subject vehicles to drive to multiple locations and obtain marijuana and to meet with suppliers of marijuana and/or his co conspirators, and is using the subject vehicles to visit grow sites for the purpose of maintaining and helping to maintain different grow sites. I have probable cause to believe SUSPECT is using the subject vehicles to pick up and deliver marijuana to and from other locations. I believe SUSPECT is using the suspect vehicles to pickup monies exchanged for marijuana and go back to different grow sites and/or suppliers to obtain more marijuana for sale. I believe that a GPS unit installed in the target vehicles is the only way to effectively conduct surveillance of SUSPECT. It is therefore necessary to maintain constant monitoring of the GPS tracking device during the surveillance, including, but not limited to, times when the GPS transmitter is located within private locations such as garages, warehouses, and barns.

I have participated in the investigation of in excess of one hundred (100) drug cases which included numerous hours of mobile and stationary surveillance. I have personally witnessed on numerous occasions various tactics of drug traffickers who try to determine whether or not they are being watched or followed. I have learned through training and experience that drug traffickers will use various techniques for detecting and evading surveillances.

I know from my experience and training that the information gathered while physically conducting surveillance of drug traffickers is valuable to an investigation such as this. However, physical surveillance can be very expensive in terms of the use of personnel hours and other resources and can at times put the entire investigation at risk should the surveillance be compromised.

I know it is possible to place a GPS type mobile tracking device in a vehicle that would allow officers to monitor the movements of a suspect vehicle anywhere in the State of Oregon with far less resource depletion than using physical surveillance methods. I know from my experience and training that the use of an electronic tracking device nearly eliminates the risk of a suspect detecting the fact that he is under surveillance since law enforcement officers need not be immediately present when the GPS tracking device is in operation.
Further, I know that a GPS mobile tracking device may require maintenance during the course of the investigation which would require law enforcement officers to access the device at any time during the day or night and provide the required maintenance. I know that the installation of a Global Positioning System/Tracking Devise takes approximately one to two hours to install utilizing the vehicle’s own power supply. Technical support agents would need access to the vehicle for at least this amount of time. I know that it only takes a few minutes to install a slap and go GPS tracking device, which operates off of its own power supply and must be reacquired periodically for a battery change. Technical support agents from the Yamhill County Interagency Narcotics Team have suggested that surveillance be conducted of both SUSPECT and his vehicle and that agents attempt to install a Global Positioning System tracking device on SUSPECT’S vehicles. Additionally this could potentially require surreptitious entry onto private property and/or entry into the vehicles as well as moving the vehicle to a hidden location for enough time to effectively install the GPS tracking device.

Based on the above information, I have reason to believe that objects of the search will relate to offenses under ORS 475.860 and 475.856 committed in the Counties of Yamhill, Washington, and Multnomah, State of Oregon. I further have reason to believe that the vehicle being monitored may leave these counties, and I seek authorization to monitor the vehicle anywhere in the State of Oregon.

For the purposes of assuring that SUSPECT is unaware of the electronic surveillance, and for the safety and security of the officers involved, I request that the mobile tracking devices be placed in the white GMC Envoy with Oregon license plate number XXX-XXX and the black Toyota pickup truck with Oregon license plate number XXX-XXX after 10:00 p.m. and before 7:00 a.m. In addition, SUSPECT may choose to drive the vehicle(s) after 10:00 p.m. or before 7:00 a.m. For these reasons, I am requesting authority to execute the search warrant any time of the day or night.

I therefore request the court issue a warrant authorizing the installation of a mobile tracking devices on the white GMC Envoy with Oregon license plate number XXX-XXX and the black Toyota pickup truck with Oregon license plate number XXX-XXX. Further, that said installation may be accomplished at any time day or night within ten (10) days of the issuance of the warrant, and that the installation may be continued upon the vehicle for a time period necessary to complete the investigation, not to exceed thirty (30) days.

Finally, because this is a continuing investigation of violations of ORS 475.860 and 475.856 and because the release of any information about this investigation may seriously compromise the effects of the investigation, I request the court seal the application and affidavit seeking the installation of a mobile tracking device, search warrant, and the return documents and authorize a delay of the reporting requirements of ORS 133.619 (4) (a) until a Grand Jury indictment has been obtained for the reasons set forth in this affidavit. Sealing these documents and suspending the notification requirements of ORS 133.619 (4) (a) by delaying it for a period of time is necessary for the preservation of the integrity of an ongoing criminal investigation and is in the best interest of justice.

___________________________________________________

AFFIANT

SUBSCRIBED TO AND SWORN TO before me this __day of _______, 2009.

_____________________________________________________________

CIRCUIT COURT JUDGE
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